MINUTES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Monday 15 July 2019

Councillor Liz Clunie (Chair)

Present:	Councillor Paul Feeney	Councillor Simon Murray
	Councillor Michael Boyle	Councillor Marje Paling
	Councillor Jim Creamer	Councillor Martin Smith
	Councillor Rachael Ellis	Councillor Sam Smith
	Councillor Mike Hope	Councillor Jennifer Thomas

Absent: Councillor Sandra Barnes and Councillor Andrew Ellwood

Officers in Attendance: M Hill and H Lee

47 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS.

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sandra Barnes.

48 TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 MARCH 2019.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be approved as a correct record.

49 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.

None.

50 COUNCIL PLAN 2018/19: OVERVIEW OF QUARTER 4 AND YEAR END PERFORMANCE

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance presented a report which had been circulated in advance of the meeting informing the committee about the position against improvement Actions and Performance indicators in the 2018/2019 Gedling Plan at the end of 2018/19.

The report informed Members about the status of the indicators and actions at year end and a presentation provided additional information.

A range of mechanisms are used to find out how the authority is performing including consultation with the public, customer complaints and compliments, benchmarking and financial appraisal.

Examples of particularly positive performance from leisure were highlighted including the increase in attendance at the Bonington Theatre and the rise in the number of children attending swimming lessons. Other areas of positive performance were also discussed including 94.3% of calls to the contact centre answered against a target of 90%, the improvement in the length of time to process planning applications and the reduction in residual household waste.

It was explained that whilst overall performance was good there are still concerns and challenges relating to:

- Levels of crime, anti-social behaviour has exceeded target
- The average length of time in temporary accommodation was higher than the target of 8 weeks at 11.1 weeks
- Provision of new and affordable homes was below target with 50 affordable homes delivered out of 286 additional homes
- Business support and apprenticeships was below target.

Members asked for clarification regarding the setting of targets and were informed how targets are identified by service managers, and that they are also considered by the Senior Leadership Team to ensure that they are challenging.

The target for attendance for the Bonington Theatre of 28,000 was identified as insufficient as numbers have increased from 37,297 to 55,552. Members asked for further information regarding why the target was set so low and how attendances have increase far in excess of the target.

During discussion members raised concerns about a number of issues and asked for additional information relating to:

- The number of fly tipping prosecutions
- The number of visits to the Carlton Contact Centre
- The availability of temporary accommodation
- The shortfall in the number of additional homes provided. The number of planning applications approved for new housing and the failure of developers to deliver. How are targets for this set and what is being done to encourage developers to build

RESOLVED to:

- Thank Mike Hill for his presentation
- Note the progress against Actions and Performance Indictors in the 2018/19 Gedling

- Request additional information relating to:
 - How the target for the Bonington Theatre was established
 - The number of fly tipping prosecutions
 - The number of visits to the Carlton Contact Centre
 - The availability of temporary accommodation
 - The shortfall in the number of additional homes provided.

51 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

SCRUTINY REVIEWS 2018/19

Members discussed the Wellbeing of Young People review and decided that as there were only two members of the working group still on the committee to conclude this work and terminate the working group. The evidence gathered and the draft conclusions would be made available to the Portfolio Holder for Young People and Equalities, the former chair of the working group, to use in her new role.

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/2020

Members agreed that the programme of Portfolio Holder attendance should continue.

It was decided that when inviting Portfolio Holders that rather than concentrating on what has happened in the past that information about what they would like to achieve in the future would be requested. It was agreed that Councillor McCrossen, Portfolio Holder for Young People and Equalities would be invited to the next committee to discuss her hopes and expectations of the new role and what she would like to achieve.

After discussion it was decided that working groups would be set up to:

- Develop an executive scrutiny protocol which will define the relationship between the Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
- Examine what initiatives are being taken to support economic growth in the borough. The focus, and what the review hopes to achieve, will be identified at the first meeting of the working group when a project plan will be developed.

Membership for these reviews will be requested from members of the committee and the wider Council membership.

Concerns regarding housing and homelessness were discussed as a possible area for examination. Prior to a working group being

established it was agreed that an officer would be invited to the next committee to supply members with initial information.

RESOLVED to:

- Conclude the Wellbeing of Young People review and forward the findings to the Portfolio Holder for Young People and Equalities
- Continue the programme of Portfolio Holder attendance
- Establish working groups to
 - a. Develop an executive- scrutiny protocol
 - b. Examine economic development in the borough
- Request additional information relating to housing and homelessness.

52 REPORTS AND NOTICES RECEIVED BY THE CHAIR OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AS REQUIRED UNDER THE CONSTITUTION OR LAW.

Members considered a report, which had been circulated in advance of the meeting, which included information on items referred to the chair as required by the Constitution.

53 ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.

None.

The meeting finished at 6.45 pm

Signed by Chair: Date: